No 6279

WEDNESDAY 3 OCTOBER 2012

Vol cxliii No 2

# **CONTENTS**

Notices	
Calendar	15
Notice of a Discussion on Tuesday, 9 October	
2012	15
Vice-Chancellor's deputy appointed: Notice	15
Election to the Council: Notice	15
North West Cambridge, funding for	
preparatory works: Notice	16
Amendment to payments additional to stipend:	
Correction	17
Roll of the Regent House: Notice	18
Lecture-list 2012–13: Notice	18
Examination results statistics: Notice	18
Vacancies, appointments, etc.	
Electors to the Professorship of Politics: Notice	18
Vacancies in the University	18
CRASSH Fellowship Competitions, 2013–14:	
Notice	19
Events, courses, etc.	
Announcement of lectures, seminars, etc.	19
Notices by Faculty Boards, etc.	
Electronic calculators in University	
examinations, 2012–13	20
Archaeological and Anthropological Tripos,	
Parts I, IIA, and IIB, 2012–13: Amendment	21
Regulations for examinations	
Bachelor of Veterinary Medicine, Final	
Veterinary Examination, Part I: Correction	21
Class-lists, etc.	
Approved for degrees, diplomas, and	
certificates: Correction	22
Postgraduate Certificate in Education, 2012	22
Final Veterinary Examination, Part III, 2012	22

Obituaries	
Obituary Notices	22
Graces	
Graces submitted to the Regent House on	
1 August 2012: Correction	22
Acta	
Congregation of the Regent House on 30 June	
2012: Correction	23
Congregation of the Regent House on	
1 October 2012	23
End of the Official Part of the 'Reporter'	
College Notices	
Elections	26
Vacancies	27
Events	27
Memorial Service	27
College Awards	
Emmanuel College	27
Magdalene College	29
Peterhouse	30
Robinson College	31
Societies, etc.	
Philosophical Society	32
Cambridge University Scientific Society	32
Other Notices	
Cambridge Finance Best Student Paper Award	
2012–13	32
External Notices	
Oxford Notices	32



#### NOTICES

## Calendar

9 October, Tuesday. Discussion at 2 p.m. in the Senate-House (see below).

14 October, *Sunday*. Preacher before the University at 11.15 a.m., Dr Eve Poole, of Newnham College, Associate of the Ashridge Business School and Director, the Foundation for Workplace Spirituality.

20 October, Saturday. Congregation of the Regent House at 11 a.m.

23 October, Tuesday. Discussion at 2 p.m. in the Senate-House.

#### Discussions at 2 p.m.

#### Congregations

20 October, *Saturday at 11 a.m.* 24 November, *Saturday at 2 p.m.* 

9 October 23 October 6 November 20 November 4 December

# Notice of a Discussion on Tuesday, 9 October 2012

The Vice-Chancellor invites those qualified under the regulations for Discussions (*Statutes and Ordinances*, p. 107) to attend a Discussion in the Senate-House, on Tuesday, 9 October 2012, at 2 p.m., for the discussion of:

1. First-stage Report of the Council, dated 30 June 2012, on the restructuring and rationalization of hospital facilities for the Department of Veterinary Medicine at West Cambridge (*Reporter*, 2011–12, p. 760).

**2**. First-stage Report of the Council, dated 30 June 2012, on the construction of a new building for the Department of Chemical Engineering and Biotechnology at West Cambridge (*Reporter*, 2011–12, p. 761).

**3**. First-stage Report of the Council, dated 16 July 2012, on the construction of a Data Centre on the West Cambridge site (*Reporter*, 2011–12, p. 811).

**4**. Report of the General Board, dated 11 July 2012, on the establishment of a Professorship of Empirical Macroeconomics (*Reporter*, 2011–12, p. 812).

**5**. Report of the General Board, dated 11 July 2012, on the establishment of a Harold Samuel Professorship of Law and Environmental Policy (*Reporter*, 2011–12, p. 814).

6. Report of the General Board, dated 11 July 2012, on the re-establishment of a Professorship of Stroke Medicine (*Reporter*, 2011–12, p. 814).

7. Seventeenth Report of the Board of Scrutiny, dated 27 June 2012 (Reporter, 2011-12, p. 815).

# Vice-Chancellor's deputy appointed: Notice

The Vice-Chancellor gives notice that, further to the Notice of 22 May 2008 (*Reporter*, 2007–08, p. 810), he hereby also appoints the Registrary, in accordance with Statute D, III, 7(b), to act on his behalf until further notice in relation to the acceptance of benefactions of up to £100,000, provided that he shall not have power to accept from the same donor one or more benefactions which exceed £100,000 in total. (The power of the University to accept benefactions is delegated to the Vice-Chancellor, see *Statutes and Ordinances*, p. 688, Regulation 6 of the regulations for the Vice-Chancellor.)

Acceptance of all benefactions is considered against the ethical guidelines published by the Council (*Statutes and Ordinances*, p. 1003). Submission of the appropriate Graces to regulate funds will be published in the *Reporter* together with announcements of the benefactions received.

# **Election to the Council: Notice**

#### 1 October 2012

The Vice-Chancellor gives notice that an election is to be held of eight persons to serve as members of the Council for four years from 1 January 2013. Members are to be elected in the following classes (see Statute A, IV, 2, *Statutes and Ordinances*, p. 7):

- (*a*) two from among the Heads of Colleges;
- (b) two from among the Professors and Readers;
- (c) four from among the other members of the Regent House.

The Council is the principal executive and policy-making body of the University. It has general responsibility for the administration of the University, for defining its mission, for the planning of its work, and for the management of its resources. The Council deals with relations between the University and the Colleges, and conducts negotiations with outside bodies on many matters (other than those relating directly to the educational and research programmes of the University, which are dealt with on its behalf by the General Board of the Faculties). It is responsible for the appointment or nomination of certain members of internal and external bodies, and for many student matters (excluding the selection of entrants, which is a College concern). Further information about the Council is available to members of the University on the Council website (http://www.admin.cam.ac.uk/committee/council/).

#### Duties and responsibilities of Council members

Council membership offers a particularly rewarding and demanding experience. The University is both an exempt charity,<sup>1</sup> and a corporation established by common law. As such, Council members are both charity trustees of the University and, effectively, its corporate directors. They have associated legal responsibilities and duties, and are required to promote the interests of the University and act with integrity, care, and prudence.

It is strongly recommended that those considering standing for nomination review the Handbook for Members of the Council, which sets out the Council's primary responsibilities. Section 4 of the Handbook provides advice and guidance to members of Council on their legal and other responsibilities. The Handbook is available to members of the University to download from the bottom of the Council web page at http://raven.intranet.admin.cam.ac.uk/committee/council/ default.aspx. Potential nominees might also wish to familiarize themselves with the key aspects of the University's *Statutes and Ordinances* (http://www.admin.cam.ac.uk/univ/so/), the most recent Budget and Allocations Report (*Reporter*, 2011–12, p. 652; http://www.admin.cam.ac.uk/reporter/2011-12/weekly/6268/section6.shtml), and the University's Annual Report and Financial Statements (*Reporter*, 2011–12, p. 215; http://www.admin.cam.ac.uk/ reporter/2011-12/weekly/6246/section4.shtml).

Further useful information is provided by HEFCE (http://www.hefce.ac.uk/whatwedo/reg/charityreg/ goodpracticeguidanceforinstitutionsascharities/), and the Charity Commission (http://www.charitycommission.gov.uk/ Publications/cc3.aspx). This information includes details of the extent of a charity trustee's personal liability. Instances of personal liability are rare and unlikely to occur, providing trustees act honestly, prudently, in good faith, and in the best interests of the University, and in compliance with legislation and the University's governing documents. Nonetheless, it is important for nominees to recognize and accept the obligations that Council membership would confer upon them.

#### Nomination procedure

In order to be eligible, a candidate for election in each case must be nominated on a paper sent to the Vice-Chancellor at the Old Schools so as to be received not later than **noon on Friday**, **9** November 2012. The nomination paper must contain (*a*) a statement signed by two members of the Regent House, nominating the candidate for election and specifying the class in which he or she is nominated, and (*b*) a statement signed by the candidate certifying that he or she consents to be so nominated. A form to facilitate the nomination process is available on the Registrary's Office website (see http://www.admin.cam.ac.uk/offices/secretariat/general/councilnominationform2012.pdf). The candidate is also required to provide a statement of her or his *curriculum vitae* by the same date (see below). No one may be nominated for election in more than one class. The Council has agreed to make known its view that two periods of four years should normally be regarded as the maximum length of continuous service for elected members.

The Vice-Chancellor would be obliged if nominations could be delivered to the Registrary in the Old Schools during office hours. Nominations will be published on the Senate-House Noticeboard as they are received; the complete list of nominations will be published in the *Reporter* on Wednesday, 14 November 2012.

In accordance with the regulations governing the election (*Statutes and Ordinances*, p. 114), each person nominated for election is required to send to the Registrary, not later than noon on Friday, 9 November, a statement of her or his *curriculum vitae* for distribution to members of the Regent House with the voting papers. It is suggested that such a statement should be of not more than 500 words in length, and that it should cover the following points:

- the candidate's present position in the University;
- previous posts held, whether in Cambridge or in other universities or outside the university system, with dates;
- a note of the candidate's particular interests within the field of University business.

The election will be conducted by postal ballot, under the Single Transferable Vote regulations. Voting papers will be distributed, together with the statements provided by candidates, on or before Monday, 19 November 2012. The last date for the return of voting papers will be **Thursday, 29 November 2012**.

<sup>1</sup> The University has charitable status but is exempt from the statutory requirement which otherwise obliges a charity to register with the Charity Commission. HEFCE is the principal regulator of the University as regards its compliance with its legal obligations in exercising control and management of its administration as a charity.

# North West Cambridge, funding for preparatory works: Notice

#### 1 October 2012

At its meeting on 24 September 2012, the Council approved a recommendation from the Finance Committee to allocate £4m from the Chest to fund necessary preparatory works for a potential Phase 1 of the proposed development of the University's lands at North West Cambridge. The preparatory works are to enable a timely start to be made on the site, should the Regent House decide to approve a Grace early in 2013 to proceed with Phase 1.

The intention of Phase 1 is to provide, in part, 300 units of student housing, and 530 units of housing for post-doctoral and other junior staff in time for the beginning of the 2015–16 academical year. Undertaking the preparatory works now will ease a tight timetable for the delivery of these and other elements in Phase 1, so that the housing is ready for occupation as planned. The preparatory works include demolitions, ecological works, archaeology, the provision of utilities, and the associated fees. If the Regent House decides to proceed with Phase 1, the costs will be met from the approved budget for that Phase. The Council concluded that the approval of this warrant now was a prudent measure to reduce the risk that Phase 1 would be late thereby delaying occupation of graduate students, and would result in a significant loss of rental income.

The Regent House is requested to note this decision. The Council will consider the case for proceeding with Phase 1 at its meeting on 22 October, and will, if it decides to recommend proceeding, publish a Report and Grace for Discussion and approval by ballot shortly thereafter.

# Amendment to payments additional to stipend: Correction

The Notice outlining the new Schedules of Payment Additional to Stipend (see Statutes and Ordinances, p. 685) agreed by the General Board and published on 18 July (Reporter, 2011-12, p. 806) was incorrect. The correct Schedules are published below.

# SCHEDULE 1

Engineering

## SCHEDULE 2

Applied Mathematics and Theoretical Physics Archaeology and Anthropology Biochemistry Chemical Engineering and Biotechnology Education Judge Business School Materials Science and Metallurgy

Astronomy (Institute) Clinical Biochemistry Clinical Neurosciences Computer Laboratory Earth Sciences Genetics

Chemistry

Physics

Architecture Haematology

Politics and International Studies

#### SCHEDULE 5

Cambridge Programme for Sustainability Leadership East Asian Studies French German History of Art History and Philosophy of Science

Middle Eastern Studies Paediatrics Spanish and Portuguese Surgery Theoretical and Applied Linguistics

## SCHEDULE 6

Anglo-Saxon, Norse, and Celtic Italian Medical Genetics

Obstetrics and Gynaecology Radiology Slavonic Studies

#### SCHEDULE X

Law Modern and Medieval Languages Music Philosophy

Classics Divinity Economics English History

#### Notes:

The Institute of Criminology and the Lauterpacht Centre for International Law are included within Law. The Centre for Business Research is included within Judge Business School.

Medicine Oncology Pathology Physiology, Development, and Neuroscience Public Health and Primary Care Veterinary Medicine Zoology

## SCHEDULE 3

Geography Land Economy Pharmacology Plant Sciences Psychology Pure Mathematics and Mathematical Statistics

# SCHEDULE 4

Psychiatry Sociology

# **Roll of the Regent House: Notice**

#### 1 October 2012

The draft Roll of the Regent House for the academical year 2012–13 (i.e. the list of names which it is proposed to place on the Roll when it is promulgated in November) was published in the *Reporter*, Special Number 1, on 1 October 2012.

Members of the Regent House are asked to check the list and to make sure that their entries are correct. They should note that the Roll constitutes the list of eligible voters for any elections to the Council or ballots that may be called during the following academical year. Notice of any corrections or amendments should be sent in writing to the Registrary at the Old Schools as soon as possible; any corrections received by 24 October will be incorporated in the definitive Roll, which is to be promulgated on 6 November 2012.

# Lecture-list 2012–13: Notice

The lecture-list for 2012–13 is available at http://timetables.caret.cam.ac.uk. Courses are listed by Faculty, with dropdown boxes for each course providing either a link to a departmental website where the relevant timetable can be accessed, or a calendar version of the timetable which can be viewed either as a report or as a weekly timetable.

## **Examination results statistics: Notice**

Examination results statistics for 2012 are now available at http://www.admin.cam.ac.uk/cam-only/offices/planning/ student/examinations/index.html (accessible only to those in the Cam domain). Student statistics and related data are available from the Student Statistics Office website at http://www.admin.cam.ac.uk/offices/planning/sso/.

## VACANCIES, APPOINTMENTS, ETC.

# **Electors to the Professorship of Politics: Notice**

The Council has appointed members of the *ad hoc* Board of Electors to the Professorship of Politics as follows:

Dr Kate Pretty, HO, in the Chair, as the Vice-Chancellor's deputy

(a) on the nomination of the Council

Professor Martin Daunton, *TH* Professor Dame Helen Wallace, the London School of Economics and Political Science

(b) on the nomination of the General Board

Professor Jonathan Haslam, *CC* Professor Christopher Hood, University of Oxford Professor John Thompson, *JE* 

(c) on the nomination of the Faculty Board of Human, Social, and Political Science

Professor Christopher Hill, *SID* Professor David Sanders, University of Essex Dr Helen Thompson, *CL* 

# Vacancies in the University

A full list of current vacancies can be found at http://www.jobs.cam.ac.uk/.

**Regius Professorship of Engineering**; closing date: 30 November 2012; informal enquiries: Professor Dame Ann Dowling, Head of the Department of Engineering (email head@eng.cam.ac.uk, tel. 01223 332739); further particulars: http://www.admin.cam.ac.uk/offices/academic/secretary/professorships/; quote reference: NA21252

**Florence Nightingale Foundation Professorship of Clinical Nursing Research**; closing date: 5 November 2012; informal enquiries: Professor Patrick Maxwell (email Regius@medschl.cam.ac.uk, tel. 01223 336738); further particulars: http://www.admin.cam.ac.uk/offices/academic/secretary/professorships/; quote reference: ZZ21242

*The University values diversity and is committed to equality of opportunity. The University has a responsibility to ensure that all employees are eligible to live and work in the UK.* 

# **CRASSH Fellowship Competitions, 2013–14: Notice**

CRASSH (the Centre for Research in the Arts, Social Sciences, and Humanities) is now accepting applications for several different Fellowships, as outlined below. Further details are available from the web pages indicated. The closing date for all Fellowships is 31 October 2012.

Early Career Fellowships	http://www.crassh.cam.ac.uk/page/17/crassh-early-career-
	fellows.htm
Charles Wallace India Trust Visiting Fellowship	http://www.crassh.cam.ac.uk/page/799/charles-wallace-india- trust-visiting-fellowship.htm
Crausaz Wordsworth Interdisciplinary Fellowship in Philosophy	http://www.crassh.cam.ac.uk/page/824/crausaz-wordsworth- fellowship.htm
Balzan-Skinner Fellowship in Modern Intellectual History since c.1500	http://www.crassh.cam.ac.uk/page/1029/application- information.htm

## EVENTS, COURSES, ETC.

# Announcement of lectures, seminars, etc.

The University offers a large number of lectures, seminars, and other events, many of which are free of charge, to members of the University and others who are interested. Details can be found on Faculty and Departmental websites, and in the following resources.

The What's On website (http://www.admin.cam.ac.uk/whatson/) carries details of exhibitions, music, theatre and film, courses, and workshops, and is searchable by category and date. Both an RSS feed and a subscription email service are available.

Talks.cam (http://www.talks.cam.ac.uk/) is a fully searchable talks listing service, and talks can be subscribed to and details downloaded.

Brief details of upcoming events are given below.

African Archaeology Group	John Alexander Seminar Series: <i>The elusive</i> <i>connection between myth and rock art: the</i> <i>San example</i> , by Professor David Lewis- Williams, on 9 October 2012	http://www.mcdonald.cam.ac.uk/ events/aag/
American History	Weekly seminars on Mondays at 5 p.m. in the Latimer Room, Clare College; first seminar: War short of war: George Kennan and the dilemmas of political warfare, by Kaeten Mistry, on 8 October 2012	http://www.hist.cam.ac.uk/seminars/ seminars-list/american-history- seminar/
Cambridge International Piano Series	Series of piano recitals at West Road Concert Hall; first concert in the series: <i>Opus one</i> , by Peter Donohoe, on 10 October 2012	http://www.cambridge.gov.uk/ public/boxoffice/CIPS/
Centre for Gender Studies	Michaelmas term events programme; first seminar: Engaging township men who have sex with men (MSM) in HIV prevention programmes, by Dr Andrew Tucker, on 8 October 2012	http://www.gender.cam.ac.uk
Kettle's Yard	Winifred Nicholson: <i>Music of colour</i> , 29 September – 21 December 2012	http://www.kettlesyard.co.uk/ exhibitions/2012/winifred_ nicholson/index.php
Lauterpacht Centre for International Law	Michaelmas term lecture programme; first lecture: <i>The scholar and international legal</i> <i>practice – a panel discussion</i> , with Professors James Crawford, Christine Gray, Vaughan Lowe, Colin Warbrick, and Marc Weller, on 5 October 2012	http://www.lcil.cam.ac.uk/lectures/ term_lectures.php
Mongolia and Inner Asia Studies Unit	Nomads, pastures, and the State: change and continuity among mobile pastoralists in Western Tibet, 1959–2012, by Melvyn Goldstein, on 9 October 2012	http://www.innerasiaresearch.org
Music	An afternoon of celebration for Hugh Wood and Alexander Goehr, on 20 October 2012; admittance free; tickets from Mrs Sally Thomson (email: st552@cam.ac.uk)	http://www.mus.cam.ac.uk/

Department of Plant Sciences Weekly departmental seminars on Thursdays at 1 p.m; first seminar: *Genetic dissection of cell death and signalling between endosperm and embryo during seed development*, by Justin Goodrich, on 11 October 2012 http://www.plantsci.cam.ac.uk/ seminars/thursday.html

CAMBRIDGE UNIVERSITY REPORTER 20

## NOTICES BY FACULTY BOARDS, ETC.

# Electronic calculators in University examinations, 2012–13

The Faculty Boards and other authorities concerned give notice that in the following examinations in 2012–13 candidates will be permitted to take a designated calculator into the examination room:

(A) Archaeological and Anthropological Tripos, Parts IIA and IIB (Biological Anthropology); Architecture Tripos, Parts IA, IB, and II; Chemical Engineering Tripos, Parts I, IIA, and IIB; Computer Science Tripos, Part IA (Calculators are not permitted in the Mathematics papers borrowed from either the Mathematical Tripos, Part IA or from the Natural Sciences Tripos, Part IA); Computer Science Tripos, Parts IB, II, and III; M.Phil. Examination in Advanced Computer Science; M.Phil. Examination in Computational Biology; Economics Tripos, Parts I, IIA, and IIB; Diploma and M.Phil. Examinations; Engineering Tripos, Parts IA, IB, IIA, and IIB; Geography Tripos, Parts IA, IB, and II; **Management Studies Tripos;** Manufacturing Engineering Tripos, Parts I and II; M.B.A. and Executive M.B.A. Examinations: Master of Finance; Medical and Veterinary Sciences Tripos (MVST), Parts IA and IB; Second M.B. and Second Veterinary M.B. Examinations; Final M.B. and Final Veterinary M.B. Examinations; M.Phil. Examinations in Epidemiology and in Public Health; Natural Sciences Tripos, Part IA (Calculators are not permitted in the subject Mathematics); Natural Sciences Tripos, Parts IB, II, and III; Philosophy Tripos, Part IA (Paper 3 only); Politics, Psychology, and Sociology Tripos, Parts I, IIA, and IIB.

For the above examinations the following calculators marked in the approved manner are permitted:

CASIO fx 991 (any version) CASIO fx 115 (any version) CASIO fx 570 (any version).

Each such calculator must be marked by the Department in the approved fashion.

No other calculator may be brought into the examination.

#### (B) Preliminary Examination for Part I of the Education Tripos Education Tripos, Parts I and II

Candidates taking papers from the Natural Sciences Tripos will be permitted to use the calculator permitted for that examination (see above).

#### (C) Mathematical Tripos

The use of electronic calculators will **not** be permitted in any papers set for the Mathematical Tripos. Candidates for Part IA of the Mathematical Tripos who offer a paper from the Natural Sciences Tripos will be permitted to use the calculator permitted for that examination (see above).

#### (D) Land Economy Tripos and M.Phil. Examinations

The permitted calculators for use in the Land Economy Tripos, and in the various M.Phil. Examinations, will be the standard University calculator CASIO fx991 (any version); CASIO fx 115 (any version); or CASIO fx 570 (any version); or the Hewlett Packard HP 10BII.

### (E) Other subjects

Papers from the examinations named above may be taken by those who are candidates for other examinations. The restriction on the use of calculators will apply when any paper or subject is offered from an examination which is the subject of this Notice.

It is the responsibility of each student to equip themselves with a suitable calculator as described. They must be marked in the approved fashion by the Department so that they are clearly identified as being permitted during the examination.

## Sale of approved calculators

Approved calculators, marked in the approved fashion, will be on sale from:

Computer Laboratory, William Gates Building (Computer Science Tripos)

Department of Chemistry (Natural Sciences Tripos)

Faculty of Economics Building

Department of Engineering (Engineering Examinations)

Department of Land Economy (Land Economy Tripos and M.Phil.) (HP 10BII only)

Department of Physiology, Development, and Neuroscience (MVST).

Approved calculators bought elsewhere will need to have the approved marking applied by the Department.

# Archaeological and Anthropological Tripos, Parts I, IIA, and IIB, 2012–13: Amendment

The Faculty Board of Human, Social, and Political Science give notice of an amendment to the list of papers offered for Parts I, IIA, and IIB of the Tripos in the academical year 2012–13 (*Reporter*, 2011–12, p. 599).

The following papers will not be offered:

BA5. The evolutionary history of African populations

BA8. Evolutionary ecology of extinct hominins

The following paper will be offered:

BA15. Human evolutionary endocrinology

The Faculty Board are confident that no candidate's preparation for the examination will be affected by this change.

# **REGULATIONS FOR EXAMINATIONS**

The General Board give notice that, on the recommendation of the Faculty Board or other authority concerned, the regulations for certain University examinations have been amended as follows:

# **Bachelor of Veterinary Medicine, Final Veterinary Examination, Part I: Correction**

The Faculty Board of Veterinary Medicine announce the following correction to the Notice published on 11 July 2012 (*Reporter*, 2011–12, p. 759):

### SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS

(Statutes and Ordinances, p. 557)

### With effect from 1 October 2012

Paper 5 (Biology of infectious diseases in domestic animals), Paper 7 (Parasitology 2), and Paper 11 (Alimentary system) have been replaced with three new papers: Principles of microbiological disease of animals, Alimentary system 1, and Alimentary system 2. The revised schedule of papers is as follows:

- Paper 1. Respiratory system
- Paper 2. Radiography and radiology
- Paper 3. Parasitology
- Paper 4. Dermatology
- Paper 5. Principles of microbiological disease of animals
- Paper 6. Clinical pathology
- Paper 7. Alimentary system 1
- Paper 8. Nutrition
- Paper 9. Urology
- Paper 10. Animal breeding
- Paper 11. Alimentary system 2
- Paper 12. Neurology
- Paper 13. Endocrinology and metabolic diseases
- Paper 14. Cardiology
- Paper 15. Veterinary public health

The written papers will each be of one hour's duration, excepting Papers 3 and 11 which will each be of two hours' duration and have a practical component.

## CLASS-LISTS, ETC.

# Approved for degrees, diplomas, and certificates: Correction

This content has been removed as it contains personal information protected under the Data Protection Act.

# Postgraduate Certificate in Education, 2012

This content has been removed as it contains personal information protected under the Data Protection Act.

# **Final Veterinary Examination, Part III, 2012**

This content has been removed as it contains personal information protected under the Data Protection Act.

# **OBITUARIES**

# **Obituary Notices**

Sir ANDREW DUNCAN CROCKETT, M.A., Honorary Fellow of Queens' College, died on 3 September 2012, aged 69 years.

FREDERICK DARNTON ('DON') HOLISTER, M.A., M.Arch., RIBA, Emeritus Lecturer in Land Economy, Emeritus Fellow of Clare College, died on 10 August 2012, aged 84 years (see also p. 27).

# GRACES

# Graces submitted to the Regent House on 1 August 2012: Correction

The Graces submitted to the Regent House on 1 August 2012 (*Reporter*, 2011–12, p. 885) contained an error.

Grace 2 included an amended Table of Fees; this table contained some incorrect information in the section relating to M.St. Degrees. The Table should have read as follows:

#### **M.St. Degrees**

(i) By inserting the following entry with effect from 1 October 2013:

Qualification	Annual Fee (£)	
	Home/EU students	Overseas students
M.St. Degree: two-year, part-time courses in		
Creative Writing	5,000	10,000
Course commencing in October 2013		

## АСТА

# **Congregation of the Regent House on 30 June 2012: Correction**

This content has been removed as it contains personal information protected under the Data Protection Act.

# **Congregation of the Regent House on 1 October 2012**

A Congregation of the Regent House was held. Before the Congregation the Vice-Chancellor delivered the following address to the University:

#### Preface

I begin by celebrating the contributions of those who have finished terms of service to collegiate Cambridge over the past year. I am particularly grateful for the wise counsel and commitment of Professor Dame Sandra Dawson and Professor Andrew Wallace-Hadrill who have completed terms as Deputy Vice-Chancellors. Five Heads of House are stepping down as we begin a new term:

Professor Willy Brown as Master of Darwin Dame Patricia Hodgson as Principal of Newnham Sir Christopher Hum as Master of Gonville and Caius Professor Lord Rees as Master of Trinity Lord Wilson of Dinton as Master of Emmanuel

We thank them warmly for their past service, and wish them and their successors well.

With sadness and respect, we commemorate five members of staff who have died in the service of the University during the course of the year. Their loss will be keenly felt, even as their memory will endure.

Dr Nancy Miller Mr Michael Whibley Mr Michael Fuller Dr Amanda Perreau-Saussine Mr Jonathan Peatfield

THE SCALE OF OUR AMBITION

#### Introduction

Just 40 miles south of Cambridge, in East London, we witnessed this summer one of the most memorable events of this still young century: the Olympic and Paralympic Games. Defying sceptics, the country was transfixed. We marvelled at the achievement of individual athletes – Jessica Ennis, Mo Farah, Ellie Simmonds, Sarah Storey, and hundreds more. I personally found myself captivated by sports – I might mention taekwondo or dressage – of which I'd had only the sketchiest idea before the Opening Ceremony, let alone any conception of the intricacies that separate success from failure! Our own alumni did especially well: 'Team Cambridge', taken as a group, with two gold and two bronze medals, would have been higher in the medal table than Canada or Norway. But we supported and cheered the success of many individuals and teams who brought elation to a country in need of cheering up. Many congratulations to all our alumni who participated and all the medal winners! To achieve that success required personal commitment and self-sacrifice by the athletes, and investment from funders in coaching and infrastructure. All of this required world-class ability, a shared vision and, above all, ambition to achieve their goals.

As members of the University of Cambridge, we too are in a global competition of Olympic proportions, and it is a competition that we are winning. Rightly, we consider ourselves to be the best university in the United Kingdom, the best in Europe, and one of a handful of truly excellent universities worldwide. The finishing line in our academic Olympics is

not well defined, and the race is never-ending. This makes it all the more challenging to maintain the drive and ambition to stay in our much-envied pole position. The global competition between universities can appear to individual scholars as a remote, even demeaning, abstraction. Although we may note in the newspapers the appearance of league tables, guides, and other commentary, we rarely see the direct effects of these in our daily lives. So, some may ask, is competition in a university context not, in fact, pointless?

I take a different view. Competition makes you run faster. Just as an Olympic athlete is selected for competition by physical and mental strength, so Cambridge has been selected, through the brilliance of our predecessors and the investment of our supporters, to compete in this great race. Having been selected, we have a responsibility to run the race as well as we can – to be ambitious to succeed. The greatest contribution that the handful of the world's leading universities can make is to strive to remain in that handful: the constant competition of the top few global universities keeps the leading edge sharp.

Competition, too, goes to the very heart of our mission. Our mission statement calibrates our successes against the most ambitious possible scale: we are urged to 'contribute to society through the pursuit of education, learning, and research *at the highest international levels of excellence.*' So we aim to be the best, never compromising on excellence, in order to serve society in its broadest sense.

Committed to benefiting society as we are, we believe that sustaining Cambridge's excellence matters, not just to Cambridge, but to the wider international community. We are curators in this moment of an 800-year-old institution which has the potential to last many centuries more. We have a responsibility to the past, and especially to the future. How are we to discharge that responsibility? What actions must we take today to ensure our place tomorrow among the leaders, forcing the pace, keeping the world's greatest universities contributing to the utmost of their potential?

I offer three answers. First, Cambridge needs to grow. Second, we need to change; and third, we need to ensure that growth and change are informed at every step by our values, our principles, and by the spirit and ambition that have seen us flourish for our first eight centuries.

#### Growth

In 50 years, Cambridge has never stopped growing - in numbers of students, numbers of postdoctoral researchers, numbers of Colleges, numbers of buildings, numbers of courses and research programmes. Mostly, this growth was organic: the taking of a series of opportunities. More recently, we have got better at planning it, in order to ensure long-term sustainability and stability.

The obvious place to start is with our students. We are a small university by British standards, recruiting just 3,300 undergraduates each year, but much larger by this measure than many of our US Ivy League peers. We have eschewed further growth in undergraduate numbers because of our determination to sustain the excellence of a Collegiate Cambridge education without compromise. The costs of sustaining that educational excellence are such that it would be financially perilous to increase undergraduate numbers, without tilting the balance significantly towards overseas students.

Cambridge has been research-led since the time of Isaac Newton. To continue to research at 'the highest international levels of excellence', we need to increase the numbers of postgraduate students and postdoctoral researchers. These groups are essential in all disciplines to sustain active research programmes, and so are key to our future academic development and competitiveness, just as we are responsible for theirs. We must compete strenuously to attract the very best of them here, and to offer them the very best environment within which they can thrive. Therefore, as Collegiate Cambridge, we have committed to continue the gradual expansion, at 2% per year, of our graduate student numbers alongside continued growth in our research activity. All six of our Schools have explicit plans as to how that will be achieved. In support of these plans, the Colleges have agreed to increase their intake – but increasing scarcity of accommodation means that beyond 2015 we will have to provide additional accommodation for graduate students and postdocs. At the same time, we must continue to build up research infrastructure and ultimately increase academic staff numbers in Faculties and Departments to provide supervision and mentoring for these new doctoral and junior research staff.

Creating the headroom for this anticipated growth is unquestionably challenging, especially in the current economic circumstances, but failure to do so will significantly weaken our future competitiveness. Therefore, I should like to highlight today one opportunity before us, the North West Cambridge project, which matches our academic ambitions and will underpin them, and whose scale, like our academic ambition, is extraordinary.

#### North West Cambridge

North West Cambridge is the biggest capital project that this University has ever contemplated – indeed, I find it difficult to think of anything comparable in British higher education. Let me give you some numbers. On completion, there will be approximately 5,000 students and staff and their families living at North West Cambridge. The site is 150 hectares in area, and will include 1,500 rental homes for University and College employees, 1,500 homes for sale, accommodation for 2,000 graduate students, and 100,000 square metres of research space (or 1 million square feet) including up to 40,000 square metres (400,000 square feet) for external research institutes and facilities linked to the University. The residents' quality of life will be determined by the facilities they enjoy on the site. The plans envisage shops, a doctors' surgery, a school, a nursery, and other neighbourhood services, many of them available from the very beginning, and many of them benefitting residents of West Cambridge as well as the new development. The final cost of the project will be close to £600 million.

This new quarter of Cambridge will be provided on a sustainable basis, setting an example commensurate with our global ambitions. This will include public transport and traffic management to reduce vehicle dependency, such as dedicated cycle routes throughout the site and an extraordinary 11,500 cycle parking spaces. In construction, we find inspiration all around us in buildings such as this Senate-House, built many years ago and still in use today. Accordingly, the new buildings will be designed to be virtually zero carbon, truly durable over at least a century, and reconfigurable internally without being rebuilt. The wide range of architects who will design the site embody international and local expertise and excellence.

North West Cambridge will create a new public quarter, close to the city centre. So we have engaged with local authorities to ensure that the project achieves a joint vision for the future of Cambridge as a city. The quarter will be permeable, with public access, so that people can see and take part in what we do; it will even have a café-restaurant opening onto a new market square, welcoming all. The green space at the heart of the site will create in effect a second Parker's Piece which, along with the Community Centre, will be managed jointly by the city and the University. Together we are committed to creating a mixed and balanced community.

Make no mistake: this proposal will change the way that Cambridge works - as a University and as a city.

North West Cambridge will further develop part of the University to the West, but it is insufficient in itself to match our needs for the future. Further major developments are planned on our biomedical campus at Addenbrooke's to the south of the city. In conjunction with our NHS partners, planned developments include building the new Papworth Hospital, with its attendant research institute focusing on cardiovascular and respiratory diseases. Centrally, in the city, we will also continue with development of the New Museums and Old Press sites. All these major projects are essential if we are to remain ahead of the field.

North West Cambridge, alongside the other developments, is a visible measure of our commitment to growth and change, and of our ambition as a world-leading university. However, it must reflect and be informed by our unchanging values and long-term perspective. I am highlighting this exciting project today because I want the whole University to be aware of the magnitude and ambition of the proposed development. In keeping with the way the University decides such matters of momentous change, it will be brought forward for a decision by the Regent House during the Michaelmas and Lent Terms. As would be appropriate for such a major development, I look forward to a full and constructive discussion. I hope the Regent House will be as impressed as I have been by the quality and scale of what is proposed, and by the way it responds flexibly to meet our vision for the future of Cambridge.

To me, the outstanding feature is the recognition provided by this project of the importance, and consequently the needs, of our postdoctoral staff: this community, so important for the future academic development of Cambridge, is so often neglected. Our postdocs, alongside our postgraduate students, embody our future and our world-class scholarly ambition, and they deserve the ambition on our part to match it. They are, and will be, successful but we must also want them to think of Cambridge as the place that changed their lives, and helped and supported them in all aspects at this critical time in their careers. In achieving that, we empower them to ensure the continued international standing of the University.

Despite its ambition, the North West Cambridge project is affordable. It will not draw resources from other parts of our academic mission or from our wider capital plan.

#### Change

The development of our physical infrastructure that I have discussed, then, is of a size and scale that enables our future development and ensures that we can grow our postgraduate community. But we cannot stall academic change and growth in other vital areas and risk losing our global competitiveness. It is vital, even with the reduced support for physical infrastructure introduced as part of government austerity programmes, that we do not lose that momentum. This year we opened the Alison Richard Building to support integrated research activity in the Social Sciences and Humanities, and the University will continue to invest in key infrastructure developments elsewhere, to support current research and teaching in, for example, engineering, stem-cell, and conservation initiatives.

However, our success in the future does not depend on buildings and facilities, but on continued growth and change in our academic staff. In doing so, we must maintain our commitment to our values and hence excellence; therefore, this too will need careful planning with the Colleges and Schools. Here, support from philanthropy will be vital and this will be a key component of our next Campaign, to build on the success of the 800th Anniversary. Since the end of that Campaign in July 2011, Collegiate Cambridge has continued to raise philanthropic funds at the rate of £2 million per week. This is essential for our academic mission and must continue unabated.

As I have said here on previous occasions, the nature of research and its funding is changing – but the University is already responding, with Strategic Research Initiatives that are now well entrenched in our fabric and supported by substantial external funding. Examples include the establishment of the £8 million MRC/Wellcome Trust Centre for Stem Cell Research, and the acquisition of further support for the Food Security theme from the Bill and Melinda Gates Foundation, BBSRC, DfID, and the Indian Government. Increased collaborations to tackle the global issues encompassed by our Strategic Initiatives are already evident in the Schools and other bodies. However, this year has also seen further major interactions with industrial partners, including BP, Rolls-Royce, Dyson, Laing O'Rourke, and GlaxoSmithKline. The list continues to grow.

The sheer scale of the problems that we seek to solve will require wider collaboration internationally, and our research and international strategies are therefore developed in tandem. I have always stressed the importance of international engagement, to build and enhance our research potential, particularly in the strategic initiatives that we have identified. This year has seen the development of joint working with the Nanyang Technological University and National University of Singapore, supported by a multi-million pound award from the Singapore Government under their CREATE scheme, as part of the Energy Initiative. I have just returned from India, where we cemented a collaboration to establish a Centre for Chemical Biology and Therapeutics with the National Centre for Biological Sciences in Bangalore, supported by the Indian Government's grant of £11 million. We also hosted a conference in Delhi to highlight the Humanities in the context of India with the Centre for South Asian Studies, and I hope that the importance Cambridge places on these disciplines will be reflected in the further planned collaborations with Indian institutions. Europe's Horizon 2020 programme offers the prospect of research support on a similar scale. Again, such collaborations will continue into the future.

#### Values

Lastly, I turn to the third element of discharging our responsibilities: values. Here I can be very brief. While we embrace change in so much that we do, our values – our relationship with society, our commitment to academic freedom, and to nurturing talent – have stood the test of time and changing them is not on the agenda, because they provide the continuing acid test in challenging and sometimes uncertain times.

#### Conclusion

Cambridge is one of a small handful of truly world-changing universities and we are ambitious for our institution. That ambition is born not just because we find ourselves curators of an 800-year legacy, but because we have a duty and a responsibility for its health and strength, its spirit, and its power to transform. It is incumbent on us to look to its future. That we do so matters, for a score of reasons, rational and emotional: our own institutional loyalty and affection; a respect for Cambridge's past; a competitive streak, glancing westwards to our sister institutions in the United States, and increasingly to the East. There is, too, a responsibility to the UK: in our teaching, where we want the country's 18-year-olds, and others of more mature years, to have options for further study worthy of their talents; in our cultural contribution to the nation; and in our economic contribution. Like North West Cambridge, our ambition must be on an Olympian scale, commensurate with our ambition for our future. Not least among the reasons why it matters is that Cambridge transforms lives, through our teaching and our research – and by doing so, we keep the rest of the global universities running hard alongside us.

## Election of Proctors and Deputy Proctors and admission of Pro-Proctors for 2012-13

ALAN THOMAS WINTER, of Christ's College, and OREN ALEXANDER SCHERMAN, of Jesus College, retired from the office of Proctor, and delivered the insignia of their office to the Vice-Chancellor.

WILLIAM OWEN SAXTON, of Murray Edwards College, and MARIA CHRISTINA SKOTT, of Magdalene College, Fellow of Wolfson College, were elected to the office of Proctor for the year 2012–13, and were admitted to that office by the Vice-Chancellor.

RICHARD JAMES STIBBS, of Downing College, and JONATHAN MICHAEL HOLMES, of Queens' College, were admitted to the office of Pro-Proctor for the year 2012–13.

ALAN THOMAS WINTER, of Christ's College, and OREN ALEXANDER SCHERMAN, of Jesus College, were elected to the office of Deputy Proctor for the year 2012–13, and made their public declaration in accordance with Statute D, VI, 5.

J. W. NICHOLLS, Registrary

END OF THE OFFICIAL PART OF THE 'REPORTER'

## **COLLEGE NOTICES**

## Elections

#### **Murray Edwards College**

Elected to an Official Fellowship from 1 October 2012: Jennifer Eilene Murray, M.A., Ph.D., *Nebraska* 

Elected to a Supernumerary Fellowship from 1 October 2012:

Gregory John Davis, B.Sc., *Sussex*, Ph.D., *DAR* Sara Helen Horrell, B.Sc., *Bath*, M.Phil., Ph.D., *T* Caroline Judith Jolley, M.A., *MUR*, MRCP (KCL)

Elected to an Emeritus Fellowship from 1 October 2012: Professor Heather Joan Glen, M.A., Ph.D., *G* 

#### St Catharine's College

Elected with effect from 1 October 2012:

Honorary Fellows:

Professor Sir John Baker, QC, FBA, LL.B., Ph.D., London, M.A., LL.D., CTH
Professor Arnoldus Blix, Ph.D., Tromsø
Mrs Rona Fairhead, CBE, LL.B., CTH, MBA, Harvard
Mrs Joanne Harris, M.A., CTH Official Fellows:

Dr Michael Hurley, M.A., *St Andrews*, Ph.D., *PEM* Dr Hazem Kandil, B.A., *Cairo.*, M.A., Ph.D., *California* 

Junior Research Fellows:

Dr Edward King, B.A., *Nottingham*, Ph.D., *EM* Dr Gert Van Dijck, Ph.D., *Leuven* (Heller Research Fellow)

#### Wolfson College

Elected to a Research Fellowship (Title BI):

Sreenivas Chavali, B.Sc., Osmania, M.Sc., Pondicherry, Ph.D., Pune

Qing Dai, M.Eng., Imperial, Ph.D., Q

Simon Elsässer, Diplom, Tübingen, Ph.D., Rockefeller

Magnus Kjaergaard, B.Sc., M.Sc., Ph.D., Copenhagen

Meng-Chuan Lai, M.D., *National Taiwan*, Ph.D., *G* Jesper Levinsen, B.Sc., M.Sc., *Copenhagen*, Ph.D.,

Colorado (Boulder)

Novi Quadrianto, B.Eng., *Nanyang Technological*, M.I.C.T., Ph.D., *ANU* 

Jeremiah Schwarz, B.A., Fordham, M.Phil., W

Louis Vermeulen, M.Sc., Ph.D., M.D., Amsterdam

Tongtong Zhu, B.Eng., M.Res., Edinburgh, Ph.D., W

Elected to a Research Fellowship (Title BIIA):

Kei Miyamoto, B.Sc., M.Sc., Ph.D., Kyoto Vijay Narayan, B.Sc., Calcutta, M.S., Ph.D., Indian Institute of Science

- Elected to a Henslow Research Fellowship (Title BIIB): Haider Butt, B.Eng., NUCES Pakistan, M.Phil., Ph.D., HH
- Elected to an Official Fellowship (Title C):

Michelle St Clair, B.A., *St Cloud State*, M.Sc., Ph.D., *York* 

Brendan Plant, B.Econ., LL.B., Grad. Dip. (Leg. Prac.), Sydney, M.Sc., LSE

Elected to an Extraordinary Fellowship (Title D): Stephen Evans, B.Sc., Ph.D., *Bath* Peter Phillips, M.A., *Oxford* 

## Vacancies

*Christ's College*: Stipendiary Junior Research Fellowship in specified area of Arts, Humanities, and Social Sciences; tenure: four years; closing date: 8 November 2012 at noon; further particulars: http://www.christs.cam.ac.uk/jrf

Non-Stipendiary Junior Research Fellowship in any subject; tenure: at least two years and not more than four years; closing date: 10 January 2013 at noon; further particulars: http://www.christs.cam.ac.uk/college-life/ vacancies

Gonville and Caius College: College Lecturers in Law (up to two appointments may be made); closing date: 10 November 2012; stipend (subject to pay award pending) of a College Lecturer who does not hold a University or other office: £32,750–£41,489 if nonresident in College, and £29,723–£38,462 if resident in College; further particulars: http://www.cai.cam.ac.uk

*Murray Edwards College*: Murray Edwards College is seeking to appoint a successor to the fourth President, Dr Jennifer Barnes, to take office on 1 October 2013. To apply for this position, and/or to receive further particulars, or for a conversation in confidence, please contact the Vice President, Elsa Strietman (email vicepresident@murrayedwards.cam.ac.uk) at Murray Edwards College, New Hall, Cambridge, CB3 0DF (tel. 01223 762798). Closing date: 15 November 2012.

*Newnham College*: Junior Research Fellowship in the Humanities and Social Sciences; stipend: £18,340 pre-Ph.D., £20,559 post-Ph.D., plus benefits; tenure: three years; closing date: 2 November 2012; further particulars: http://www.newn.cam.ac.uk/joining-newnham/research-fellowships

Junior Research Fellowship in Science, Mathematics, Engineering, or Philosophy; stipend: £18,340 pre-Ph.D., £20,559 post-Ph.D., plus benefits; tenure: three years; closing date: 26 October 2012; further particulars: http:// www.newn.cam.ac.uk/joining-newnham/researchfellowships

*Peterhouse*: Research Fellowships; tenure: from 1 October 2013; closing date: 12 November 2012; further particulars: http://www.pet.cam.ac.uk/ *St Catharine's College*: Research Fellowships (one stipendiary and the other non-stipendiary); open to graduates of any university who (i) are members of the College, or (ii) not being members of the College, are engaged in research in the Sciences; tenure: three years from 1 October 2013; closing date: 31 October 2012; further particulars: http://www.caths.cam.ac.uk/home

*St Edmund's College:* Henslow Research Fellowship; tenure: three years from 1 October 2013; stipend: £20,210–£21,878; closing date: 30 November 2012; further particulars: http://www.st-edmunds.cam.ac.uk/ posts/henslow-fellowship/index.php

Sidney Sussex College: Research Fellowships (one in the Arts and Social Sciences, and one in the Sciences); to commence on 1 September 2013; stipend: up to £19,972, plus benefits; closing date: 5 November 2012; further particulars: http://www.sid.cam.ac.uk/aboutus/personnel/

# **Events**

*St Edmund's College:* The G. L. S. Shackle Biennial Memorial Lecture will be held on Thursday, 8 November 2012 at 4 p.m. in the Law Faculty. The guest speaker will be Lord Skidelsky, Emeritus Professor of Political Economy at the University of Warwick. His talk will be entitled *Keynes, Shackle, and uncertainty in the light of today's discussions.* Further details can be found at http:// www.st-edmunds.cam.ac.uk/news/shackle\_lecture\_2012/ index.php.

*Trinity College*: The Tarner Lectures for the Michaelmas Term 2012 will be given by Sir Geoffrey Lloyd, formerly Professor of Ancient Philosophy and Science in the University of Cambridge, on *The ideals of inquiry: an ancient history*. Further information is available at http:// www.trin.cam.ac.uk/index.php?pageid=243.

# **Memorial Service**

*Clare College*: A service of memorial and thanksgiving for the late Frederick Darnton ('Don') Holister, Fellow, 1962–2012, Emeritus Lecturer in Land Economy, will be held in the Chapel of Clare College on Monday, 12 November at 3 p.m (see also p. 22).

Guests are invited to join the Fellowship for refreshments afterwards in the Great Hall.

#### **COLLEGE AWARDS**

## SOCIETIES, ETC.

# **Philosophical Society**

Professor Mike Edmunds, Emeritus Professor of Astrophysics, University of Cardiff, will deliver the Larmor Lecture, entitled *The Antikythera mechanism and the mechanical universe*, in the Bristol-Myers Squibb Lecture Theatre, Department of Chemistry, on 8 October 2012, at 5.30 p.m. Further information is available at http://www.cambridgephilosophicalsociety.org/lectures. shtml.

# **Cambridge University Scientific Society**

The Cambridge University Scientific Society aims to promote all branches of science at a level that is stimulating both to those studying science and to those with an arts background. The Society is one of the most active science societies in Cambridge, organizing weekly talks, social events, and away trips.

Further information and a list of upcoming talks for the term can be found on the Society's website at http://www.scisoc.com.

# **OTHER NOTICES**

# Cambridge Finance Best Student Paper Award 2012–13

Any Cambridge University graduate student studying finance at the Faculty of Economics, Faculty of History, Department of Land Economy, Faculty of Law, Faculty of Mathematics, or Cambridge Judge Business School is eligible to enter. The author of the best student paper in finance receives a prize of £1,000.

Full details are available from the Cambridge Finance administrator, Sheryl Anderson (email sa609@cam.ac. uk), or on the Cambridge Finance website (http://www.finance.group.cam.ac.uk).

## EXTERNAL NOTICES

# **Oxford Notices**

*Magdalen College*: Fellowship by Examination (JRF); tenure: three years; stipend: from £21,000; closing date: 18 October 2012; further particulars: http://www.magd. ox.ac.uk/whos-here/job-vacancies/

Visiting Fellowships: non-stipendiary; closing date: 14 December 2012; further particulars: http://www.magd. ox.ac.uk/whos-here/job-vacancies/

*Nuffield College*: Three-year Postdoctoral Prize Research Fellowships in Social Sciences; stipend: £23,315 plus research budget, and allowances; closing date: 5 November 2012; further particulars: http://www. nuffield.ox.ac.uk/general/jobs/

*St Anne's College*: Global Justice Research Fellowship; salary: £20,282; closing date: 31 October 2012; further particulars: http://www.st-annes.ox.ac.uk/about/job-opportunities.html

University College: Stipendiary Lecturership in Medieval History; salary: £16,347–£18,385, with additional benefits; closing date: 22 October 2012; further particulars: http://www.univ.ox.ac.uk/content/stipendiary-lecturership-medieval-history/

Notices for publication in the *Reporter* should be sent to the Editor, Cambridge University Reporter, Registrary's Office, The Old Schools, Cambridge, CB2 1TN (tel. 01223 332305, email **reporter.editor@admin.cam.ac.uk**). Copy should be sent as early as possible in the week before publication; short notices will be accepted up to **4 p.m. on Thursday** for publication the following Wednesday. Inclusion is subject to availability of space.